BYLAWS

124.26

OF

650 ISLAND WAY CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

A corporation not for profit under the Laws of the State of Plorida

I.

Identity

Section 2. The office of the Association shall be at 12385 Automobile Boulevard, Clearwater, Florida, 33529.

Section 3. The Association shall operate upon the calendar year beginning on the 1st day of January and ending on the 31st day of December of each year. The Board of Directors is expressly authorized to change from a calendar year basis to a fiscal year basis whenever deemed expedient and for the best interests of the Association.

Section 4. The seal of the Association shall bear the name of the Association, the word "Florida," and the words "Corporation not for profit" and the year of incorporation, an impression of which is as follows:

II.

<u>Definitions</u>

Section 1. All words, phrases, names and terms used in these Bylaws, the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation of the Condominium Association, and Exhibit "A" attached to said Declaration shall have the same meaning and be used and defined the same as they are in the Condominium Act unless the context of said instruments otherwise requires.

III.

The Association

Section 1. Members. The owners of the condominium parcels

shall be the members of this Association.

- a. Any legal entity capable of ownership of real property under the Laws of Florida shall be eligible for membership.
- b. Any legal entity, upon acquiring title to a condominium parcel, shall thereby become a member of the Association; and upon the conveyance or transfer of said ownership, said owner's membership in the Association shall automatically cease.
- Section 2. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the membership shall be held at the principal office or place of business of the Association, or at such other suitable place convenient to the membership as may be designated by the Board of Directors.
- Section 3. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Association shall be held on such date as may be set by the Board of Directors. Thereafter the annual meetings of the Association shall be held on the first Wednesday of March of each succeeding year. If the day so designated falls on a legal holiday, then the meeting shall be held on the first secular day thereafter. At the annual meeting the members may transact such business of the Association as may properly come before them. The time of all meetings shall be set by the directors and the directors by majority vote may change the date of the annual meeting.
- Section 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called by the President and shall be called by the President or Secretary at the request in writing of the Board of Directors or at the request in writing of five (5) members. Such requests shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting.
- Secretary to mail a notice of each annual or special meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each member of record, at his address as it appears on the membership books of the Association, and if no such address appears, at his last known place of address, at least fourteen days for an annual meeting and five days for a special meeting, prior to such meeting, and for annual meetings the post office certificate of mailing shall be retained as proof of such mailing. The mailing of a notice in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered notice served.
- Section 6. Minutes. Minutes of all meetings shall be kept in businesslike manner and available for inspection by unit owners and Board members at all reasonable time.
- Section 7. Majority of Owners. As used in these Bylaws, a "majority of owners" shall consist of that number that shall exceed fifty per cent thereof.
- Section 8. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the presence in person or by proxy of a "majority of owners" as defined in Section 7 of this paragraph, shall constitute a quorum.
- Section 9. Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not later than ten (10) days from the time the original meeting was called, and hold the meeting adjourned, without additional notice, provided that a quorum can be obtained for such meeting.

OR6856: 755

Section 10. Voting. At every meeting of the members, the owner or owners of each unit, or combination of units, either in person or by proxy, shall have the right to cast one vote as set forth in the Declaration. The vote of the majority of those present, in person or by proxy, shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which, by express provision of statute, or of the Declaration of Condominium, or of the Articles of Incorporation, or of these Bylaws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control. If a unit is owned by more than one person, or is under lease, the person entitled to cast the vote for the unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record owners of the unit according to the roster of unit owners and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If a unit is owned by a corporation, the persons entitled to cast the vote for the unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by the president or vice president and attested by the secretary or assistant secretary of the corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association. Those certificates shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the unit concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote for a unit may be revoked by any owner of a share in the unit. If a certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote for a unit is not on file, the vote of the owners shall not be considered in determining whether a quorum is present nor for any other purpose.

Section 11. Proxies. A member may appoint any other member, any owner of any condominium parcel, the developer, or the manager as a proxy. Any proxy must be filed with the secretary before the appointed time of each meeting.

Section 12. Order of Business. The order of business at all annual or special meetings of the members shall be as follows:

a. Roll call.

- b. Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- c. Reading of the minutes of preceding meeting.
- d. Reports of officers.
- e. Reports of committees.
- f. Election of officers (if election is to be held).
- g. Unfinished business.
- h. New business.

IV.

Administration

Section 1.

a. Number and Qualification. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors. The number of directors which shall constitute the Board shall be not less than three (3) nor more than five (5). The Board of Directors may from time to time increase or decrease the number of persons to

OR6856PG1756

serve on the Board, provided there is always an odd number of members and there is never less than three (3) nor more than five (5) members. Any increase or decrease in the number of members shall be effectuated prior to the notice of the next annual meeting, and such change in numbers shall be effective as of the date of the regular election at such annual meeting. All directors, except for the initial directors named in the Articles of Incorporation, shall either be members of the Association or designees of the Developer. The Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the owners by a plurality vote and each Director shall serve for a term of one year or until his successor shall be elected and duly qualified, except that the initial Directors shall serve until their resignation or relinquishment of control of the Association by the Developer pursuant to Article V of the Articles of Incorporation. The Developer reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to remove and replace any or all of the initial directors or their designated replacements.

- b. Removal. Directors may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote or agreement in writing of a majority of the owners. The vacancy so created shall be filled by the members of the Association. No Director, other than the initial Directors named in the Articles of Incorporation, or Directors as may be designated by the Developer as provided above, shall continue to serve on the Board if, during his term of office, his membership in the Association shall be terminated for any reason whatsoever.
- c. <u>Vacancies</u>. Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies in the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining Directors.
- Section 2. Powers and Duties. The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association, and may do all such acts and things as are not by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of the Condominium Association, the Condominium Act, or these Bylaws directed to be exercised and done by the members or officers. The powers of the Board shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
- a. All powers and duties of the Condominium as set forth in the Condominium Act and in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, except as limited as above provided.
- b. To prepare and adopt an annual operating budget, which budget shall be sufficient in amount to pay for all necessary expenses and expenditures to be shared in common by the respective owners of units, and including a reasonable reserve for repairs, upkeep and replacement of the common elements and for contingencies.
- c. To prepare a detailed report of the acts for the previous year, and present same at the annual meeting of members.
- d. To determine who shall act as legal counsel and as accountant for the Association whenever necessary.
- e. To determine the depository for the funds of the Association.
- f. To acquire the necessary personnel needed for the intenance, care, and upkeep of the common elements, and set the salaries of said personnel.
 - g. Assess and collect all assessments pursuant to the

OR6856PG1757

Condominium Act.

- h. Establishment of reserves or making assessments for betterments to the condominium property.
- i. Within sixty (60) days following the end of the fiscal year or calendar year of the Association, the Board of Directors shall mail or furnish by personal delivery to each unit owner a complete financial report of actual receipts and expenditures for the previous twelve (12) months. The report shall show the amounts of receipts by accounts and receipt classifications and shall show the amounts of expenses by accounts and expense classifications, including, if applicable, but not limited to the following:
 - (1) Cost for security:
 - (2) Professional and management fees and expenses;
 - (3) Taxes
 - (4) Cost for recreation facilities;
- (5) Expenses for refuse collection and utility services;
 - (6) Expenses for lawn care;
 - (7) Cost for building maintenance and repair;
 - (8) Insurance costs;
 - (9) Administrative and salary expenses: and
- (10) General reserves, maintenance reserves and depreciation reserves.
- Section 3. Management Agent. The Board of Directors may employ for the Association a management agent at a compensation established by the Board for the management and maintenance of the condominium property and authorize the management agent to assist the Association in carrying out its powers by performing such functions as the submission of proposals, collection of assessments, preparation of records, enforcement of rules and maintenance, repair and replacement of the common elements with funds as shall be made available by the Association for such purposes. The Association and its officers shall, however, retain at all times the powers and duties granted by the condominium documents and the Condominium Act, including but not limited to the making of assessments, promulgation of rules and execution of contracts on behalf of the Association.
- Section 4. Compensation. No compensation shall be paid to directors for their services as directors. No remuneration shall be paid a director for services performed by him for the Association in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been unanimously adopted by the Board of Directors before the services are undertaken.
- Section 5. Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held within ten days after the annual members meeting, at such place as shall be fixed by the Board and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected directors in order legally to constitute such meeting, providing all of the Board of Directors shall be present.

DR6856PG1758

Section 6. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors, but at least two such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least three days prior to the day named for such meeting.

Section 7. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on three days' notice to each director, given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place (as hereinabove provided) and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the President and Secretary, in like manner and on like notice, on the written request of at least two directors.

Section 8. Notice of Meetings to Unit Owners. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all unit owners and notices of meetings shall be posted conspicuously forty-eight (48) hours in advance for the attention of unit owners, except in an emergency.

Section 9. <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. Before or at any meeting of the Board of Directors, any director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the directors are esent at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 19. Minutes. Minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the unit owners shall be kept in businesslike manner and available for inspection by unit owners and Board members at all reasonable times.

Section 11. Quorum. At all meetings of the Board of Directors a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any such adjourned meeting, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice, provided a quorum is present.

Section 12. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Directors shall require that all officers and employees of the Association who control or disburse Association funds shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds, with the premiums for such bonds to be paid by the Association.

Section 13. <u>Designation of Officer</u>. The principal officers of the Association shall be President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may appoint an Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary, and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary.

Section 14. Election of Officers. The officers of the Association hall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the organization meeting of each new Board, and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.

OR6856PG1759

Section 15. Removal of Officers. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose.

Section 16. President. The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of president of the Association.

Section 17. Vice President. The vice president shall take the place of the president and perform his duties whenever the president shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the president nor the vice president is able to act, the Board of Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. The vice president shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board of Directors.

Section 18. Secretary. The secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors, and the minutes of all meetings of the Association; he shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary.

Section 19. Treagurer. The treasurer shall have responsibility for Association funds and securities, and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association. He shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 20. Nominating and Executive Committees. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to appoint an Executive Committee comprised of members from the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee may be delegated the responsibility to perform those powers and duties of the Board as the Board may determine. The Board shall also have the authority to appoint a Nominating Committee comprised of members of the Association to assist in the election process of members of the Board. The number of members and scope of authority may be determined by the Board.

v.

Assessment and Collection of Common Expenses

Each unit owner shall share that percentage of the common expenses, and own that percentage of the common surplus, in direct relationship to the percentage of the common elements owned by said unit owner. Assessments for the common expenses, including those required under any Management Contract, including reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs of collecting any assessments, shall be secured by a lien against the condominium parcel against which it is made and such lien shall arise in favor of the Association and shall come into effect upon recordation of the Declaration of Condominium. Said lien shall date back to the date of the Declaration and shall be prior to the creation of any homestead status or any subsequent lien or encumbrance, except that said lien shall be subordinate and inferior to that of any institutional mortgage. Assessments shall be made not less

frequent than quarterly in an amount no less than required to provide funds in advance for payment of all of the anticipated current operating expenses and for all of the unpaid operating expenses previously incurred.

VI.

Annual Budget

Pursuant to Article IV, Section 2, paragraph b of these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall have the power and duty of
preparing and adopting an annual operating budget for the Association. The Board of Directors shall mail a meeting notice and
copies of the proposed annual budget of common expenses to the
unit owners not less than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting
at which the budget will be considered. The meeting will be open
to unit owners and if an adopted budget requires assessment
against the unit owners in any fiscal or calendar year exceeding
one hundred fifteen per cent (115%) of the assessments for the
preceding year, the Board, upon written application of ten per
cent (10%) of the unit owners to the Board, shall call a special
meeting of the unit owners within thirty (30) days, upon not less
than ten (10) days' written notice to each unit owner. At the
special meeting, unit owners shall consider and enact a budget,
and the adoption of such budget shall require a vote of not less
than a majority of all unit owners. The Board may propose a budthe budget or proposed budget is approved by the unit owners at
budget shall be adopted. In determining whether assessments
the meeting or by a majority of all unit owners in writing, the
budget shall be adopted. In determining whether assessments
for repair or replacement of the condominium property, anticipated expenses by the Condominium Association which are not antiments for betterments to the condominium property shall be ex-

The proposed annual budget of common expenses shall be detailed and shall show the amounts budgeted by accounts and expense classifications, including, if applicable, but not limited to, those expenses listed in Section 718.504(20), Florida Statutes. In addition to annual operating expenses, the budget shall include reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance. These accounts shall include, but not be limited to, roof replacement, building painting, and pavement resurfacing. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by mated replacement cost of each reserve item. These provisions shall not apply to budgets in which the members of the Association have, by a vote of the majority of the members present at a year to provide no reserve or reserves less adequate than required by this Section.

VII.

Amendment of Bylaws

The Bylaws of the Association may be modified, amended or rc. ded, unless specifically prohibited elsewhere herein, at any regular or special meeting of the members of the Association by not less than seventy-five per cent of the votes of the entire membership of the Association, provided that not less than fourteen (14) days' notice of said meeting has been given to the members of the Association, which notice contained a full statement

of the proposed modification, change or revocation.

VIII.

Arbitration of Internal Disputes

Internal disputes arising from the operation of the Condominium among the unit owners, this Association, and their agents and assigns, or any of them, may be submitted to binding arbitration in the manner provided by law and under the rules of the American Arbitration Association or such other rules as the disputing parties shall mutually agree to. No matter shall be submitted to arbitration hereunder without the consent in writing of all the disputing parties, except that if a matter shall be submitted to arbitration by some of the disputing parties, arbitration may proceed with respect to them and the disputes among them, but any decisions thereunder shall not be binding upon the non-consenting parties.

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of 650 ISLAND WAY CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., a corporation not for profit under the Laws of the State of Florida, at the first meeting of the Board of Directors on Cooper 1, 1928.

650 ISLAND WAY CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

By Kothy Minaman

RCW:cae 8110D

Interest

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP OF COMMON ELEMENTS AND COMMON SURPLUS AND SHARE IN COMMON EXPENSES

Unit Number		ŭ					Percentage
			(Based	on	57	unit	s)
101							1.720
102							1.720
103							1.720
104							1.720
106							1.720:
107				57			1.720
108							1.720
201							1.720
202							1.720
203 204							1.720
206							, 1.720
207							1.720 1.720
208							1.720
301							1.720
302							1.720
303							1.720
304							1.720
306							1.720
307							1.720
308							1.720
402			'a				1.720
403							1.720
404				T):			1.720 1.720
405							1.720
406							1.720
407							1.720
408							1.720
501							1.720
502 503							1.720
503 504							1.720
505							1.720
506							1.720
507							1.720 1.720
508							1.720
601							1.720
602							1.720
603							1.720
604							1.720
605							1.720
606 6.07							1.720
608							1.720
701							1.720
702							1.720 1.720
703							1.720
704			3				1.720
705							1.720
706							1.720
707							1.720
708	185 8						1.720
801 * 07							2.210
8 02 803							2.210
804							2.210
UV7							2.210